Before the
FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION ,

In the Matter of ) '

) DEC 2 8 2010
Fime Wamer Cablev ) CSR- Federal Communications Commission

. . ) {ffice of the Secretary

Emergency Petition for Injunction )
Prohibiting Carriage In Violation of )

)

The Commission’s Rules

To: * The Secretary’s Office
Attn:  Chief, Media Bureau

EMERGENCY PETITION FOR PROHIBITION OF
CARRIAGE IN VIOLATION OF THE COMMISSION’S RULES!

Pursuant to Section 76.7 of the Cbmmission’s rules (47 C.F.R. §76.7), Nexstar
Broadcasting, Inc. (“Nexstar™), the licensee of NBC-affiliated television broadcésf -station ‘
| WBRE-TV, Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania (“WBRE”), and Missiop Broadcasting, - Inc.
(*Mission™), the licensee of AB_C-affiliated television broadcast station WUTR, Utica, New
" York, hereby request the Commissio'n’l prohibit Time Warner Cable (“Time Warner”) froni
carrying WBRE on its cable systems serving certain communities in Delaware; Otsego,
‘Herkimer and Oneida Counties, New York, which are located in_-thé Utica Designatéd Market -
Area (the “TW Utica System”) and from carrying WUTR on its cable systems serving
‘ commimities in Essex, Franklin and Clinton Counties, New York, which are iocated in the

Burlington, Vermont-Plattsburgh, New York Designated Market Area (the “TW Plattsburgh

' As a potential sanction for the issues raised in this Petition, Nexstar and Mission also request the Commission
waive its network non-duplication protection rules (47 C.F.R. §76.94(c)(2)) and require Time Warner to honor
immediately the network non-duplication requests of WKTV(TV), licensed to Smith Media License Holdings,
LLC (*Smith™), and WVNY(TV), Burlington, New York, licensed to Lambert Broadcasting of Burlington, LLC
(“Lambert”). :



System™) in violation of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended (the “Communications
Act”) and the Commission’s rules.
I. Background and Introduction

" Nexstar and Mi.ssion are parties to a retransmission consent agreement with Time Warner
covering cable television distribution of the signals of WBRE in the Scranton—WiIkes-Barre,
Pennsylvania market and WUTR in the Utica, New York market. On the evening of December
15, 2010, at 6:00 p.m., Time Warner notified the general managers of WBRE and WFXYV, (that
ié, Time Warner did not even notify Mission, instead it notified the general manager of the
Nexstar station thatvprovides sewice§ to WUTR pursuant to a shared services agreement) via
electronic mail that in six hours (at midnight on December 16), Time Warner would be adding

WBRE to its channel line-up on the TW Utica System and WUTR to its channel lineup on the

Platisburgh Sys.tem.2 This last-minute “notice” left Nexstar and Mission with no time or
opportunity to object. At 12:00 ‘am. on December 16, 2010, Time Warner cémfnenced :
retransmission of WBRE on the TW Utica System and WUTR on the TW Plattsburgh System.3
Not only did Time Warner fail to lawfully notify Nexstar and Mission of this change,
research indicates that Time Warner does not appear to have notified its custbm'ers or local
franchising authdri.tiesbabout the addition. Nexstar and Mission have béen able to locate 'only
one notice that Time Warner provided to its customers régarding the addition of WBRE and

WUTR - a table on its retransmission consent policy website advising customers of the

N

See Attachment 1, Letters from Time Warner to Nexstar dated December 15, 2010.

3 Time Warner has informed Nexstar and Mission that it interprets the retransmission consent agreement to
impose no geographic restrictions on Time Warner’s carriage of the stations such that Time Warner may carry
Nexstar's Jacksonville, Florida Station or Mission’s El Dorado, Arkansas station on the Time Warner New
York City system if it 50 desires. Nexstar and Mission strongly disagree with Time Warner’s interpretation of
their retransmission consent agreement, and intend to pursue appropriate remedies.
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substitution of WBRE for Smith’s WKTV and WUTR for Lambért’s WVNY.4 Time Warner
also apparently issugd an online legal notice for its Central New York systems dated December
15, 2010 regarding 130 channels that might be added, relocated, or d;op;ﬁed, buf the additions of
WBRE and WUTR are nowhere to be found in this notice. Nexstar and Mission also believe
the local franchising authorities were not properly notified of the additions at least 30 days prior
to these éllangeé.ﬁ | |
Nexstar and Mission now understand that Time Warner’s decis_ion to retrahémit WBRE
- on the TW Utica System and WUTR on the TW Plattsburgh System without notiﬁcation,
‘consent’ or authorit& and without providing the statutbrily reqiliredi 30 days advance notice to
Nexstar, Mission, its customers or its franchising authorities is part of its negotiating strategy to
gain leverage in ité rr‘etransmission consent diéputes with Smith, ﬂle licensee of the local Utica
NBC affiliate, W_KTV, and Lambert, the licensee of the 1oca1 Plattsburgh' ABC affiliate, WVNY.
Time Warrier has dfopped WKTV aﬁd WVNY and feplaced them With WBRE and WUTR.
Time Warner is apparently gambling that its customers will bérhappy as long as they continue to
receive network programming and, therefore, is importing a non-local station (WBRE) over 130
miles to Utica and a non—loéal station (WUTR) over 140 miles to Plattsburgh.” |
"~ Time Warner’s usé of WBRE and WUTR in bits garner of _retransmission consent

brinkmanship with Smith and Lambert without providing the requiréd 30 days” notice to any of

4 See www.rolloverorgettough.com/smithmedia.

5 See Attachment 2.

6  Elizabeih Hammond, Nexstar’s Vice President & General Counsel spoke with the Mayor David Roefaro of
Utica on December 28, 2010 who confirmed that, as of the date hereof, hie is unaware of any notice from Time
Warner regarding the addition of WBRE to the TW Utica System.

7 Based on opinions expressed in the local Utica newspaper, Time Warner is gambling wrong,.  See Attachment
3. ' : '



the required parties is a flagrant violation of the Communications Act and the Commission’s
rules, and a disservice to its Utica and Plattsburgh subscribers, who are without a local news
source in this dangerous weather time of year.

II.  Time Warner’s Actions Are In Clear Violation of the Communications Act and the
Commission’s Rules. ’

The ' Communications - Act and the Commission’s rules impose precise notice
» .requirements’ on cable operatofs. Section 76.1601 (implementing Sectidﬁ 614(b)(9) of the Act
(47 U.S.C. §534(b)(9)) states “a cable operator shall provide written notice to aﬁy broadcast
television station at least 30 days prior to either deleting 'ﬁ*om carriage or repositioning that
station.” This section also requires that notification be provided to subscribérs- of the cable
system. In addition to rthe requirements of Section 76.1601, cable operators are required to notify
' customers of any changes in rates, prograrnming éervices dr cﬁannel positions ﬁs soort as ‘
possible in writing, with notice to be given a minimum of thirty (30) days in advance of such
change. if the change is within the cable operator’s control, and when the. change involves thé
addition or deletion of chénnel_s, each chapnel. added or deleted must be separately identified.’
The ﬁnderlying purpose of the Notibe Rules is rto alert subscribers}i, local franchising authorities
and _broadéast television statiéns to changes in programming services prior to implementation of
such qhaﬁges. 19

Time Warner is well aware of the Notice Rules, having been sanctioned by the

Commission repeatedly for failing to provide customers and local franchising authorities with

8 47 C.F.R. §76.1601.
9 47 C.F.R. §76.1603. Sections 76.1601 and 76.1603 are hereinafter referred to as the “Notice Rules.” -
16 See, e.g., Media General Communications Holdings, LLC, Request for Waiver of Sections 76.1601 and 76.1603

‘of the Commission's Rules, Request for Withdrawal of Emergency Enforcement Complaints, 24 FCC Red
11509, 6 (MB 2009). , ‘



adequate notice prior to service changes. Specifically, the Commission has taken the following -

recent enforcement actions with respect to Time Wamer’s repeated disregard of the Notice

Rules:

A consent decree, including a $25,000 contribution to the U.S. Treasury, to
address Time Warner’s failure to notify customers of the loss of service

occasioned by its conversion to switch digital video delivery of its cable signals;”

A $7,500 forfeiture for repositiOnin% channels on its Placentia, California cable
system without notifying customers;

A $7,500 forfeiture for migrating the National Gebgraphic Channel from its basic

tier to its digital tier on its cable system serving San Diego, California without
notifying subscribers;!? and

An injunction requiring Time Warner to restore the NFL Network to cable
systems where the network was dropped prior to providing the required customer

notices and a consent decree in which TWC specifically admitted fault. .

In addition, in a proceeding just last year, Time Warner requested (and received) a waiver of

Sections 76.1601 and 76.1603 to enable Time Warner to add a television signal to its cable

systems without providing the requisite 30-day notice to affected parties.!>

As detailed above, Time Warner continues to have a blatant disregard for the

Commission’s Notice Rules. Time Warner did not provide Nexstar, Mission, its customers or,

on information and belief, its franchising authorities with the required 30-day notice, of its

Oceanic Time Warner Cable, a subsidiary of Time Warner Cable, Inc., 24 FCC Red 12151 (EB 2069),

Ti’hie Warner Cable, Inc., 34 FCC Red 1064 (EB 2009} ($7,500 fine for failing to notify cuStdmers of change in

programming service).

13 Time Warner Cable, Inc., 24 FCC Red 1059 (EB 2009) ($7,500 fine for failing to notify customers of change in
programming service). ’ ‘

Time Warner Cable, Order on Reconsideration, 21 FCC Red 9016, 9025, 926 (MB 2006), consent decree

adopted, Order, 21 FCC Red 11229 (MB 2006).

15 Media General Communications Holdings, LLC, 24 FCC Red 11509 (MB 2009).
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progralﬁming service change to add WBRE on the TW Utica System and WUTR on the
Plattsburgh System.!6 Nexstar and Mission have advised Time Warner that its failure to comply
with the Notice Rules is a breach of the parties’ retransmission consent agréexﬁent and demanded
that Time Warner immediately cease carriage of WBRE on the TW _U_tica System and cease
carriage of WUTR on the Plattsburgh System as a result of this breach.!?

Iﬁ response, Time Warner claimed that it is awé;‘re of nothing in the Commissions’ rules
that would require 30 days" advance notice to Nexstar or any other party in tllése cir.c;umkstanc»es,
despite its representations to thg contrary th the Commissioﬁ in lvast.year’s request to waive the
Notice Rules.!8 Apparently Time Warner does not believe that adding a station to a system more
than 100 miles away is repositioning the station on a different channel and worthy of the advance
notice required to the broadcaster. | |

Mdreover, Time Wamérv is required by Section 76.1603 to prdf/ide notice to its customers
and frénchising authorities with respect to changes to its p?ogramming service, in this instance

identifying the channels being added. Time Warner’s obscure notice via its 'website

www.rollgverorgettough.com cannot be deemed by the Commission as sufficient to provide its
customers or its- franchising authorities with the advance notice cable operators aré required fo
' provide. Especialiy since those whé go to thlS website must know to further navigate to another
page to ‘actually'see the notice. Had Time Warner complied with the Notice Rules, subsCribéfs

and the franchising authorities would have been alerted to the substitutions of wholly-irrelévant

16 The addition of WBRE to the TW Utica System and WUTR to the TW Plattsburgh System is wholly within the
control of Time Warner. It was not required by any party or Commission rule to add these stations to these
systems at any time. Accordingly, the requirement for 30-day advance written notice is applicable.

17 See Attachment 4, Nexstar Letter to Time Warner dated December 21, 2010.
18 See Attachment 5, Time Warner Letter to Nexstar dated December 22, 2010. To the exient the provisions of

Section 76.610f the Commission’s rules apply to this Petition, Nexstar believes its letter of December 21 and
Time Warner’s reply on December 22 fulfill the requirements set forth in Section 76.61(a). -

6



out-of-market stations WBRE for WKNY and WUTR for WVNY prior to being subjected to
such changes (and at least its subscribers would have had time to make alternative arrangements -
to retain their local news programrhiﬂg). Again, contrary to law and its own prior Statements,
Time Warner siﬁply claims the Notice Rules don’t apply.

As Time Warner has pre\}iously demonstrated, it does not bélievé the Commission’s rules
apply to it. So yet again the Commission must remind T imé Warner that it indeed mustk éémply
with the Commission’s rules. The Commisgion has»the authority vaﬁd thé duty to act immediately
to stop Time Warner’s disregard of the Noﬁce Rules. At the vex;y minimum,'ﬂle Commission
should prohibit Time Warner frovm the carriage of WBRE on the TW Utica Sy.stem‘and WUTR
on the Plattsburgh System.!? Hdwever, bécauée this is not Time Warner’s first ‘or. even second
violation of the Notice Rﬁles, Nexstar and Mission propose the Commission sérve Time
Wamer_’s »subscﬁbers with a remedy that beﬁeﬁts them 'morei directly by pennifting WKTV and
| WVNY to immediately assert network nonQduplication pr_otecﬁon rights on the TW Utica System

and TW Plattsburgh System, as applicable.2 By granting Smith and Lambert immediate -

19 Time Warner's current retransmission consent agreement with Sinclair Broadcastmg Company expires on
December 31,2010, To the extent Time Warner adds Nexstar or Mission stations 1o its systems in place of any
Sinclair station (or any other broadcaster’s station) without compliance with the Notice Rules, Nexstar and

" Mission request that the Commission also prohibit such carriage.

20 Smith and Lambert provided Time Warner with network non-duplication natice letters on December 17, 2010,
See Attachment 6, Accordingly, this action would require’ the Commission to grant waivers to Smith and
Lambert of the 60-day period that Time Warner is permitted to continue NBC network affiliated carriage in
Utica and ABC network affiliated carriage in Plattsburgh. Waiver of the Commission’s rules is appropriate
when (1) special circumstances warrant a deviation from the general rule; and (2) such deviation would better

~ serve the public interest than would strict adherence to the rule. See 47 C.F.R. §1.3. See also WAIT Radio v.

~ FCC, 418 F.2d 1153 (D.C. Cir. 1969). Time Warner’s egregious disregard of the Commission’s Notice Rules
warrant the deviation from the 60-day period during which a cable operator is permitted to continue duplicating
network carriage in this instance. In addition, deviation in this case better serves the public interest. The
Commission adopted its 60-day notice requirement for network non-duplication protection primarily to ensure
adequate time for notice to consumers and other interested parties before relied-upon network programming is
removed from a cable system. Amendment of Parts 73 and 76 of the Commission's Rules Relating to Program
Exclusivity in the Cable and Broadcast Industries, Memorandum Opinion and Order, 4 FCC Red 2711, § 71
{1989); Amendment of Paris 73 and 76 of the Commission’s Rules Relating to Program Exclusivity in the Cable
and Broadcast Industries, 3 FCC Red 5299, 100 (1588). The Commission alse sought to give cable operators
adequate time to provide all legally required notices and make any necessary technical adjustments before
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network non-duplication protection rights, Timé'Warner will have no incentive to import market-
irrelevant network affiliates such as WBRE and WUTR and every incentive to feach a resolution
to its retransmission consent dispﬁfe with Smith and Lambert, thereby restoring local news and
other local programming to its Utica and Plattsburgh sﬁbscribers. '

Time Warner has spent the past year lobbying the Connniésion that the retransxﬁission
consent process is broken, but the real problem with retransmission conéent is »_notr the
. Commission’s rules — it is stunts like Time Warner’s importing non-local network affiliates
withoﬁt notice or consent in order to avoid engaging m m¢aningful negotiaﬁons for cafriage of
the local a‘fﬁl_iafe on a fair value basis. If Time Warner Sper‘lti less timevdreaming up clever
strategies for circum;/enting the law and manipulating its customers, and more time negoﬁating
fair deals with local broadcasters, the circumstances underlyiﬁg this Petition would not arise.
The Commission mﬁst not allow Timc_ Warner to brazenly flout thé, Commission’s Notice Rules,
while Time Warﬁer does further harm to its subscribers by hiding behind the network non-

duplication waiting period. To do so does immeasurable damage to the retransmission consent

. . : o . - 21
balance Congress struck in Section 325(b) of the Communications Act.

requiring deletion of programming, /d. Enforcement of the 60-day notice provision in this case permits Time
Warner to continue reaping the benefits of its violation of the Notice Rules, converting a shield designed to
protect consumers into a sword Time Warner can use to prolong its viewers' lack .of access to local
programming. Nexstar and Mission will not object to a waiver for immediate enforcement with respect to any
broadcaster’s request for network non-duplication protection under similar circumstances.

47 U.S.C. §325(b).



[lI. Conclusion.

For the foregoing reasons, Nexstai’ and Mission hereby requést the Commission issue an
1mmed1at@ emergency 1nJuncllon prohlbltmg Time Warner from carrying WBRE on the TW
Utica System and WUTR on the TW Plattsburgh Sybtem Nexstar and stsnon further urge the
Commxssmn to waive the 60-day notice provisions of Section 76. 94(0)(7) of its rules and require
Tlme Warner to immediately recognize and give- effect to thc network non—dupllcatlon ng,hts

asserted by Smith and Lambert. -

The undersigned have read (his Petition, and to the best of hisfher I\nowkdge
information and belief’ formed afler reasonable inquiry. it is well grounded in fact and is
warranted by existing law or a good faith argumenl for the extension, modmcatlon or rev«.rsal of

existing law; and is not interposed ior any 1mproper purpose.

December 28, 2010

Respectfully submitted,

NFXQTAR‘BROADCASTING INC.

Wi s mon)

Elizabeth Hammond

Vice President & General Counsel
5215 N. O’Connor Blvd

Suite 1400

Irving. TX 75039

 MISSION BROADCASTING, INC.

Dennis Thatch

Chief Operating Officer
30400 Detroit Road

Suite 304

Westlake, OH 4414‘? 1855

ML@.&M



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1, Elizabeth Hammond, Vice President & General Counsel of Nexstar Broadcastmg, Inc.,
hereby cemfy on this 28" day of December 2010, a copy of the foregoing “Emergency Petition
For Prohibition of Carriage In Violation of the Commission’s Rules” was sent via first class
mail, postage prepaid, unless otherwise noted, to the following: o

William T. Lake*

Chief, Media Bureau

Federal Communications Commlssmn
445 12" Street, S.W.

Room 4-A865

Washington, D.C. 20554

Michele Ellison*

Chief, Enforcement Bureau

Federal Communications Commission
445 12" Street, S.W.

Room 7-C723

Washington, D.C. 20554

*Via hand delivery

EVP and Chief Programming Officer
Time Warner Cable Inc.

60 Columbus Circle

New York, NY 10023 -

mm@

Ehzabeth Hammond
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ATTACHMENT 1



6005 Falr Lakes Road

East Syracuse, NY 13057

RO. Box 4781, Syracuse, NY 13221
Tel (315) 634-6100

Fax {315) 483-8020

TIME WARNER CABLE

THE POWER OF YOU"

Via Email/PDF and Federal Express
December 15, 2010

Lou Abitabilo

General Manager
WBRE

62 S. Franklin Street
Wilkes-Barre PA 18701

Dear Lou;

I am writing to let you know that we will be adding carriage of the 51gnal of WBRE in
our systems serving certain communities in Delaware, Otsego, Herkimer and Oneida
Counties, New York, as permitted by our current retransmission consent agreement. ‘We
will cease such carriage no sooner than the later of thirty days from the date hereof or
such date that we secure retransmission consent rights from the local NBC affiliate in
such areas; we may however contact you to discuss ceasing such carriage prior to thirty
days from the date hereof, : : .

If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to call me.

Smcerely,

/‘17/@«»/

Henry Pearl

. Area Vice President of Operations

Time Warner Cable — Central New York
6005 Fair Lakes Road

East Syracuse NY 13057

C:ADocuments and Settings\E000993\Local Settings\Temporary Intermet Files\Content.Outlook\VUIWAFVE\Letler to WBRE
121510-0ladoe



~ 6005 Fair Lakes Road
East Syracuse, NY 13057
0. Box 4791, Syracuse, NY 13221
Tel (315) 634-6100
Fax (315) 463-8020

TIME WARNER CABLE

THE POWER OF YOU™ -

Via Email/PDF and Federal Express
December 15,2010

Steve Merron
General Manager
WUTR

5956 Smith Hill Road
Utica NY 13502

Dear Steve,

T am writing to let you know that we will be adding carriage of the signal of WUTR in
our systems serving certain communities in Essex, Franklin and Clinton Counties, New
York, as permitted by our current retransmission consent agreement. We will cease such
carriage no sooner than the later of thirty days from the date hereof or such date that we
secure retransmission consent rights from the local ABC affiliate in such areas; we may
however contact you to discuss ceasing such carriage prior to thirty days from the date
hereof. ‘

If you have any qucstiohs or concerns, please do not hesitate to call me. .

Sincerely,

Ho A

Henry Pearl .
Area Vice President of Operations
~ Time Wamer Cable - Central New York
6005 Fair Lakes Road
East Syracuse NY 13057

CADocuments snd Settings\EQ00993\Local Settinps\Temporary lnleﬁxet Files\Coment.Outlook\VUIWAFVB\Letter to WUTR
121510-010.doc ’ : - '
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©Time Warner Cable*
.Légai Notice = December 15, 2»01(})

Time Warner Cable’s agreements with programmers to carry their services routinely expire from time to time.
We are usually able to obtain renewals or extensions of such agreements, and carriage of programming services
is discontinued only in rare circumstances. The following agreements with programmers are due to expire soon,
and we may be required to cease camage of one or more of these services in the near future where tlzese
services are offered: :

WBPN WFFF WGMU-CA WICZ /WICZ HD _ ' WIVB/WIVB HD WKTV/WKTV HD

WNLO/WNLO HD WNYO/WNYO DT2  WNYS/WNYS HD WNYT/WNYTHD  WSYT/WSYT HD
WUHF/WUHKF HD WUTV/WUTV HD WVNY/WVNY DY Current TV - Fox Reality
IndiePlex ~  Lifetime RetroPlex truTv . © The Erotic Networks/Pleasure
Weather Chanriel o :

Encore/Encore HD/Encore Action/Encore Love/Encore Mystery/Encore WAM/Encore Westerns
Starzl/Starz! HD/Starz! Cinema/Starz! Comedy/Starz] Comedy HD/Starz! Edge/Starz] Edge HD/Starzl In Black
Starz! K;ds & Family/Starz! Kids & Fam:ly HD .

The followihg networks may be added, relocated, dropped or have a name change within some viewing areas:

WBNG DT2 WCAXHD . WHEC/WHECHD WIKP  WIVB/WIVB HD WKBW WKTV HD, WNMN

WNYC/WNYO DT2 WNYS DT2 WPIX  WQLN WSEE WSKA - ‘WSTM HD _
WSKG/WSKG HD/WSKG2/WSKG3 ' WSWB - - WVIAHD SWXXi WWNYHD. A&E AccessTV
American Life  Art & Coin  BBC America Bravo C-Span2 CMT/CMT HD Cartoon - Cooking Channel HD
Cool TV Network . Corner Store TV Discovery Health/HD Discovery Kids , - DIYHD

El ESPN Goal Line  Entertainment on Demand EWTN/HD fX  Flix FitTV  Fox Sports Carolina, West
Fuse  Game HD2 GMC/GMC HD Golf Channel  Government Access HSN Hallmark Movies/HD -
History & Nature OD History Channel International HD Investigation Discovery/HD Jewelry Channel
ION/IONHD - )" TV Kabillion OD  Lifetime HD Lifetime Movie Network ~ Liquidation Channel

Movies on Demand in Simulcasts MLBTV ~ MSG Plus Music Choice Pop& Rock/Music Choice Urban & Latin

OonTvV4Uu 0oTB NBA HD National Geographic  News & World OD NESN -

Public Access /OnTWC {Elmira only) ~Revenue Frontier/Celebrity Shopping ~ Shop Zeal 2 Shawtime SVOD HD
VOD HD Speed2 Sportskool OD " SportsSouth  SportsNetNY  Sportsman Channel - Style
Sundance TBS S tru TV © TV Guide TV Shows on Demand- TV Superstore  TWC Sports

Untamed TV = Wild VH1 HD YNN - ZeeTV

You may downgrade or terminate service without charge at any time. Further 1f carriage of a premlum channel
is discontinued and you have incurred installation, upgrade or other one-time charges relating to such premmm
service within six months prior to the date of the change, you may elect to downgrade or terminate service
within 30 days and obtain a rebate of any such charge. :

By law, we are required to make this notification. Channel carriage notices are also found at our web51tc
WWW, twcny com.
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December 21 . 2010

" Via Electronic Mail and Overnight Delivery

Michelle N. Kim

‘Group Vice President & Chief Counsel, Programmmg
Time Warner Cable

60 Columbus Circle _

New York, New York 10023

Re: Notice of Breach‘of Agrecmeht

Dear Ms. Kim:

On the evening of December 15, 2010, Henry Pearl, Area Vice President of TW Central
New York, notified Nexstar and Mission, as-applicable, that Time Warner has added WBRE-TV"
to its systems serving certain communities in Delaware, Otsego, Herkimer and Oneida Counties,
New York (the “Utica System™), and added WUTR to its systems serving communities in Essex,
Franklin and Clinton Counties, New York (the “Plattsburg” System). We continue to object to
- Time Warner’s interpretation of the agreement as permitting Time Warner to carry any Nexstar,
Mission or Four Points’ station on any Time Warner system throughout the country, As the
legislative history and relevant Federal Communications Commission Orders make clear,
retransmission consent is inherently pranted with respect to carriage of stations in their local
* markets, not in non-local markets in distant parts of the country. (Time Warner is equally aware
that the networks grant authonty for retransmission consent only within local markets and on a
‘significantly viewed basis in their network affiliation agreements.) Therefore, it is absurd for
Time Warner to sugpest that the parties negotiated or even intended to negotiate for carriage
rights covering all of Nexstar’s, Mission’s and Four Paints’ stations on every Time Warner
system nationwide during the last retransmission consent negotiations. Indeed, had Nexstar
suggcsted to Time Warner that the agreement was contingent on Time Warner’ carriage of its-
station in Jacksonville, Florida on its New York City sysiem at the time the agreement was
executed, the agreement never would have been executed by Time Warner.

We also bring to your attention that these additions are in clear vxolatmn of federal law.
“Pursuant to §76.1601 of the FCC’s rules (47 C.F.R. §76.1601), a cable Operator is required to -
provide written notice to a broadcast television station at least 30 days prior to either deleting
from carriage or repositioning that station. As Time Warner itself has previously acknowledged,
the addition of a station to a system requires this advance notice (see e.g., Time Warner's.
Request For Expedited Waiver Of Part 76 Cable System Channel Change And Repositioning
Notification Procedures with respect to (he addilion of telewsmn station WBTW back to its
systems serving various communities in South Carolina). Time Warner’s notice of the addition
of WBRE-TV on its Utica System and WUTR on its Plattsburg System was delivered a scant
‘handful of hours prior to the addition, after business hours, and in a manner inconsistent with the
retransmission consent agreement. (As of the date hereof, we have yet to be properly notified by

5215 North O'Connor Bivd. = Sulte 1400 = lving, TX 75039 - Phone: 972,373.8800 Fax: 972.373.8888
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Michelle Kim
December 21, 2010
Page2

Time Warner as required pursuant to the retransmission consent agreement.) We object to this
lack of timely notice and will take ail actions we deem necessary to protect our nghts based on
this lack of notice,

In addition, it is a well-established principle of contract law that parties to a contract are
deemed to have contracted with reference to existing law, and that all applicable provisions of
state and federal law existing at the time of the formation of a contract are regarded as a part of
the coniract as implied terms. Therefore, Time Warner’s failure to comply with §76.1601, and
correspondmgly §76.1603 with respect to notification of its customers and local ﬁanchlsmg
authorities, prior to adding WBRE-TV to the Utica System, and adding WUTR to the Plattsburg
System, constitutes a material breach of the retransmission consent agreement between Time
Warner, Nexstar Broadcasting, Mission Broadcasting and Four Points Media Group.

Pursuant to Sectmn 11(a) of the retransmission consent agreemem you are hereby -
notified that you have thirty (30) days to cure this breach. We will consider Time Warner to
have cured the breach only by its immediate removal of WBRE-TV from the Utica System and
by its immediate removal of WUTR from the Plattsburg System until such time as Time Warner
provides us with 30 days advance notice (after the removal of unlawful carriage) of iis intent to
add these stations to its systems and confirms that it has provided its customers and ﬁanclusmg '
authorities with their requisite 30 day notices. (We are not waiving our continued and ongoing
objection to Time Warner’s interpretation of the agreement as permitting this carriage should
Time Warner cure the breach.) If Time Wamer does not cure this breach as required by the
agreement, the agreement will terminate only with respect to Time Warner’s rights (if any) to
carriage of WBRE-TV on the Utica System and carriage of WUTR on the Plattsburg System on
January 22, but any such termination will have no effect on the broadcasters rights to
indemnification for the damages caused by Time Wamer s conduct. :

We further clarify that this is a unilateral action taken by Time Warner in breach of the
retransmission consent agreement and federal law. Accordingly, Nexstar and Mission have no
‘obligation to provide Time Warner with a good quality signal as required by Section 3, nor do
Nexstar and Mission have any copyright obligations to Time Warner with respect to its recently
- comumenced carriage of WBREZ~TV on the Utica System and WUTR on the Plat‘rsburg System. .

We look forward to your prompt response conﬁrmmg that Time Warner come into
comphance with applicable law and the agreement promptly, This letter is written without
waiver of any broadcaster’s rights to seek legal or equitable remedies in connection with the
practices described above all of which are expressly reserved '

Sincerely,

, Lo
Elizabeth Hammond
Vice President & General Counsel



Michelle Kim
December 21, 2010
Page 3

cc: Mark Lawrence, EVP & General Counsel
Melinda Witmer, EVP & Chief Programming Officer
David M. Lange, Assistant Chief Counsel '
Perry Soock '
Jean Dietze, Sr Vice President — Affiliate Relatlons, NBC Universal .
John Rouse, Sr Vice President — Affiliate Relations, ABC Television Network
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60 Columbus Circle - Michelle N. Kim
New Yark, NY 6023 .  Gruup Vice Prosidenr & Chiuf Connsel, ngrummmg
Tel 2123648480

Fax 703-973-6242
micheliekim@weable.com

TIME WARNER
"CABLE

December 22, 2010

Via Fedeml Ex ress & Facsimile (272-373-8888

Elizabeth Hammond

Vice President & General Counsel
Nexstar Broadeasting Group, Inc.
5215 North O’Connor Blvd.

Suite 1400 ‘
Irving, TX 75039

Dear Ms. Hammond: . v '

This letter responds to your December 21 notlce asserting that Time Warner Cable (“TWC™isin
breach of its retransmission consent agreement with Nexstar (“Agreement”). In that notice, you expressly
invoke the thirty (30) day cure provision found in Section 11(a) of the Agreement. Although we continue
to evaluate Nexstar's position, Ithought it would be useful to provide you with our mmal reaction to your -

- letter.

Nexstar's position is that TWC may not carry WBRE and WUTR outside those stations’
designated market areas. As we explained in our letter of December 16, however, the language of Section
1ofthe Agreement provides TWC the right to retransmit the stations on each “System” and defines. -
“System™ as “any”” TWC owned or opérated cable system. Nowhere does the Agreement impose any
geographic limitations on TWC’s carriage rights with regard to the covered stations. It is well established

- that where, s here, the language of the contract is clear, that language must govern the contract’s
interpretation. Because the Agreement plainly grants TWC the right to retransmit WBRE and WUTR on
any of its systems, it is not clear to us how TWC's exercise of that right could cause a breach.

We also fail to understand your position that retransmission consent is “inherently granted with
respect to.carriage of stations in their Jocal markets.” Many refransmission consent agreements—Ilike the
one at issue—are not 50 limited, and the FCC has expressly acknowledged parties’ right to enter into such
arrangements. See Jmplementation of the Cable Television Consumer Protection and Competition dct of
19932; Broadeast Signal Carriage Issues, Report and Order, 8 FCC Red 2965 ¥ 148 (1993) (explaining
that “all television stations, local and distant alike, have refransmission consent rights,” and categorically
rejecting the notion that “broadeasters do not have that right with respect to cable systems outside the
market"); id. 1 174 (emphasizing that the langnage of “particular contracts,” rather than the statute, will
determine the scope of 2 broadeaster’s grant of retransmission consent). Indeed, if retransmission consent
agreements never provided for out-of-market carriage and networks invariably prohibited such grants in
affiliation apreements, then there would be no need for the FCC's non-duplication rules or, for that
matter, the distant signal importation provisions of Section 111 of the Copyright Act. Moreover,



" DEC-22-2818 1B:56 ‘ TWC PROGRAMMING ' _ » 2123648541 P.@3

Nexstar’s assertion that TWC would not have ngreed to an obligation to carry these stations out of market
is beside the point. As we have previously explained, Section 1 of the Agreement grants TWC broad
carriage rights, but an entirely separate provision determines TWC's carriage bbligations, and those are
far more limited. ’

With respect to Nexstar’s arguments about TWC’s notice obligations, we are aware of nothing in
the FCC’s rules that would require 30 days® advance notice to Nexstar or to any other party in these
cireumstances. Nor is it clear how any such regulatory requirement would bear on our compliance with
the Agreement in any case. Your assertion that Section 76,1601 of the FCC's rules required written
notice to Nexstar at Jeast 30 days in advance of our carriage of WBRE-TV and WUTR in additional
communities seems to misapprehend the text of the rule. That provision applies only where a cable
operator “delet{es]” or “repositionfs]” a station, 47 CF.R. § 76.1601, neither of which has occurred here.
Norhas TWC “acknowledpged” that Section 76,1601 or 76.1603 applies more broadly, as you assert.
TWC filed the waiver request you cite because its restoration of a broadeast signal that had been .
temporarily dropped entailed repositioning the Home Shopping Network. That proceeding accordingly -
has no relevance here, where TWC's carriage of the Nexstar stations out of market required neither the
deletion nor repositioning of any programming service. Indeed, in the Media Bureau order granting
TWC's request, the Bureau described "the underlying purpose of the applicable rules™ in relevant part as
alerting “broadcast television stations that will be deleted or repositioned to changes in programming
services prior to implementation of such changes.” Media General Communications Holdings,
Memorandum Opinion and Order, 24 FCC Red 11509 47 (MB 2009) (emphasis added).

In light of the foregoing, we believe that Nexstar may not terminate the 'Agreement and must live
up to the signal quality, copyright, and all other obligations contained therein. We will, howaver, tale
under advisement your demand for cure within 30 days and will remain available to further discuss these

. matters with you at your convenience,

incerely,

Michelle N. Kim

ce: Marc Lawrence-Apfelbaum — Executive Vice President & General Counsel
Melinda Witmer — EVP & Chicf Programming Officer : '
Perry Sook — Chief Executive Officer, Nexstar Broadcasting Group, Inc.
Steve Merren — General Manager WUTR ' '
Lou Abitabilo — General Manager WBRE
David M. Lange — Assistant Chief Counsel
Susan Weinstein — Vice President, Programming

- TATAL P83
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1215 Cole Street St Louis MO 63106 _ ’
314-259-5766 £ F14-259-5532

December 17,2010

Via Certified Mail, Return Recexpt Requested

Via Facsimile (315-463-2088) -

Mr. Henry Pearl

Time Warner Cable
- 6005 Fair Lakes Road : . -
East Syracuse, NY 13057 -

Dear Mr. Pearl:
‘As you know, WKTV(TV), Channel 2 at Utlca, N&W York, is the prlmary network affiliate of

- the NBC Television Network for the Utica Designated Market Area. Smith Media License Holdings,
LLC (“Smith”} is the licensee of WKTV(TVY). WKTV(TV)’s main studio is located at 5936 Smith

_ HlIl Road, Utica, NY 13503

As required by the FCC, Smith hereby notifies you that, on December 16, 2010, it entered
into an amendment to its network affiliation agreement with the NBC Television Network. Pursuant
to 47 C.F.R. § 76.92, the amendment reiterates and reconfirms WKTV(TV)'s existing network non-
duplication protection tirough December 31, 2015, with respect ta the simultaneous duplication of
all NBC television network programs. For your convenience, we are attaching a copy of the
amendment which addresses the station’s networl non—dupllcatlon rlghts

Currently, WKTV(TV) broadcasts regularly scheduled NBC Television Network

_ programming during the time periods listed in Attachment A to this letter. From time to time,

WKTV(TV) broadeasts NBC network programs, including news and sports, in additional time slots.
FCC rules prevent a local cable operator from carrying the signal of any other television station when
such other station is broadcasting any NBC programming pmtected by WKTV(TV)’S network non-
duplication rights.

It is our understanding that your cable system is not honoring WKTV(TV)’s network non-
duplication rights. Therefore, Smith hereby formally asserts its right to require all cable system’s
owned or operated by Time Warner Cable within WKTV(TV)’s zone of protection as defined by the
FCC’s rules to begin providing network non-duplication protection immediately. Plcase contact me
directly if you have any questlons concemmg this matter. . ,

Sincerely,

Vicé President — Chief Financial Officer

Enclosures

“Ce:  Ms. Carrie Bocian (via email)



ATTACHMENT A

NBC Programmed Time Periods:

Monday through Saturday:
Sunday:

Monday through Thu'rsday:

Friday:
Saturday:

 Monday through Friday:
~ Saturday:
Sunday:

Monday through Friday:
- Saturday: '

- Monday through Thursday:

Friday:
-Saturday:
Sunday:

8:00~11:00 P.M.
7:00-11:00 P.M.

11:35 P.M.-2:05 AM. : '
11:35P.M.-235 A M. .o -
11:30 PM.-1:01 AM.

© 4:30-5:00 A.M., 7:00-10:00 A.M. and 6:30-7:00 P.M.

7:00-9:00 A.M. and 6:30-7:00 P.M.
8:00-10:00A.M. and 6:30-7:00 P.M.

1:00-3:00 PM.
10:00A.M.-1:00 P.M.

2:05-4:00 AM. . -

2:35-4:30 AM.
1:01-230 AM.

- 11:30. P.M.-1:30 A.M.
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NBC SLUNIVERSAL December 16, 2010

Smlth Media chense Holdings, LLC (as assignee) o 20 Puchsistion Plaza,
{SMLLC License Sub) : v Faoss Yok, B¢ 30112

BRI A RPN

Utica, New York

RE: WKTV (Utica, New York) |

Ladies and Gentiemen: .

. The following shall constitute an amendment to the television network
affiiation agreement (the "Agreement”) between the licensee of station

- WKTV ("Station") and the NBC Telavision Network ("NBC"), effectxve as of
Apni 4, 1995

1. During the term of the Agreement; Station shall, by the terms of this
amendment, be entitled to invoke protection against the simultaneous

~ duplication of NBC's network programming as carried by Station imported

-~ within a radius from Station’s designated community of license as defined in

" Section 73.608 of the Rules of the Federal Communications Commission

("FCC") to the maximum geographic extent from said community of license
permitied under the present Sections 76.92 and 73.658(m) of the FCC's
Rules and in accordance with the terms and conditions of said Rules.

2. Either party shall have the right to terminate this amendment at any time

- during the term of the Agreement, by written notice to the other given at least
60 days prior to the effective date of such termination, but only in the event of
the foHowmg

(i) Station grants consent ta the retransmxssnon of its broadcast stgnal
by any cable television system or, except as provided in subparagraph 2(b)
(if) below, to any other muiltichannel video program distributor ("MVPD"), as
~ defined in Section 76.64(d) of the FCC Rules, whose carriage of broadcast
signals requires retransmission consent, and such cable system or MVPD is
localed outside the Designated Market Area ("DMA") as defined by Nielsen to
- which Station was assigned, unless Station’s signal is actually carried by
such cable system or MVPD as of April 1, 1993, or, with respect to such
cable system, is "significantly viewed" (as determined by the FCC) as of April -
1, 1993, In areas in addition to those in which it was “significantly viewed” as
of April 1, 1993 ("Additional Viewing Areas”), NBC agrees that it will negoliate
in good faith with Station regarding a possible extension of Station's grant of
the right to retransmit its broadcast signal to cable systems in the Additional
Viewing Areas, or . :



» (ii). Station grants consent (o the retransmission of its broadcast
signal by any MVPD that provides such signal to any home salellite dish
user, unless such user is located within Station’s own DMA or is an
“unserved household" as defined in Section 119 (d) or any successor

 provision of Title 17 of the United States.Code. '

Any notice of termination under paragraph 2 hereof given by either party may
be withdrawn by such party if, as of the effective date provided therein, the
circumstances giving rise to such party’s right of termination no !onger exist.
To the extent that any term of the Agreement is mconmstent with the terms of _
this amendment, this amendment shall prevail. Except as modified by this
amendment, the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

Very truly yours, |

_ NBC Universal. 1nc.

MW /UM,(

Dietze .
Semor Vice Pres:dent Affi hate Relations

AGREED AND ACCEPTED: .
Smith Media License Holdings, LLC

Name: :ZWT At rre et
Title: VP Zén




" December 17,201 0

Via Certxfied Mail, Return Receapt Req uested
Via Facsimile (315-463-2088)

Mr. Henry Pearl

Time Warner Cable

6005 Fair Lakes Road

East Syracuse, NY 13057

Dear Mr. Pearl:

- As you know, WVNY(TV), Channel 22 at Burlington, Vermont, is the primary network
affiliate of the ABC Television Network for the Burlington-Plattsburgh Designated Market Area. . -
Lambert Broadcastmg of Burlington, LLC (“Lambert”) is the licensee of WYNY(TV). ,

, _WVNY(TV) s main studio is located at 298 Mountam Vxew Drive, Colchester, Vermont 05446

As required by the FCC, Lambert hereby notlﬁes you that, on December 17, 2010, it entered
into an amendment to its network affiliation agreement with the ABC Television Network. Pursuant
to 47 C.F.R. § 76.92, the amendment reiterates and reconfirms WVNY(TV)’s existing network non-
duplication protection through December 31, 2014, with respect to all ABC television network
programs during the period beginning forty-eight hours before and seven days after the live time

“period for broadcast of the network program. For your convenience, we are attaching a copy of the
amendment which addresses the station’s network non-duphcatlon rights.

: Currently, WVNY(TV) broadcasts regularly scheduled ABC Televnsnon Network

- programming during the time periods listed in Attachment A to this letter. From time to time,
WVNY(TV) broadcasts ABC network programs, mcludmg news and sports, in additional time slots.
FCC rules prevent a local cable operator from carrymg the signal of any other television station when
such other station is broadcasting any ABC programming protected by WVNY(TV) 5 network non-

duplxcatlon rights.

It is our understandmg that your cable system is not honoring WVNY(TV) s network non-
duplication rights. Therefore, Lambert hereby formally asserts its right to require all cable system’s
owned or operated by Time Warner Cable within WYNY(TV)’s zone of protection as defined by the
FCC’s rules to begin providing network non-duphcatlon protection lmmedlately Please contact me
directly if you have any questions concerning this matter. :

Sincerely,

Sam Englebardt

“Enclosures

Cec: Ms, Carrie Bocian (via email)



ATTACHMENT A
ABC Programmed Time Periods:

| Monday-Fridaj - 3:00-5:00 anﬁ, 7:00 - 9:00 am, 6:30 - 7:00 pm,b

1:00 - 4:00 pm, 8:00 - 11:00 pm, 11:35 pm - 12:35 am
Saturday 8:00 - 9:00 am, 9:00 am - 12:00 pm, 6:00 - 6:30 pm,
- 8:00 - 11:00 pm '

Sunday 8:00 - 10:00 am, 6:00 - 6:30 pm, 7:00 - 11:00 pm



| @felevision network

M. Ian Guthrie -

On behalf of WVNY/Lambert Broadcasting LLC
1215 Cole St.

St. Louis, MO 63106

December 16, 2010

. Reference is made to the ABC Television Network Affiliation Agreement (“the
Agreement”) dated September 20, 2010, between us and Lambert Broadcasting LLC relating to
. broadcast station WVNY-TV, Channel 22.1. Burlington, VT (“the Station”). Forandin '
consideration of their mutual undertakings, ABC Television Network (“ABC”) and Lambert
Broadcasting LLC (“Broadcaster”) agree as follows: 5

’ Broadeaster shall be entitled to invoke network non-duplication protgétion as
defined by Section 76.92 of the FCC rules with respect to Network programs in any and all
formats, as follows: : S

L. The geographic zone of network non-duplication protection shall bethe =
‘ Designated Market Area (“DMA”) (as defined by Nielsen) in which Stationis -
located, or any lesser zone pursuant to any geographic restrictions contained in
the FCC rules and regulations, now or as subsequently modified.

2, Network non-duplication protection shall extend only to all Network programs
~ that Station clears in their live, in-patter time periods in accordance with the s
Agreement. Protection shall not extend to individually pre-empted programs of an
- otherwise cleared series or programs that Station fails to clear, : ,

3. Network non-duplication protection for Network programs that Station clears in _
- accordance with the Agreement shall be effective 48 hours prior to and ending at
12 midnight on the seventh day following the live time period designated by ABC
for broadcast of such network programs by Station.

4. Broadcaster is under no obligation to exercise in whole orin part the network
non-duplication rights granted under this Letter Agreement.

_ ' These rights are effective iinniediately and extend t}zrough the term of the
- Agreement (including renewals). All other terms and condifions of the Agreement remain in foll
force and effect. Please signify your agreement to the fopégoing by countrsi

indicated below, ‘
Sigcgrely,

F/ _ '
For ABC // For Broadcaster 7/ ¥ \

Date: }Z}/} é}/) 2

Affiliste Ralations, 77 West 66th Street, Naw York, NY 10023-6201
p: A2.486,T7T7



